Uldaho Law

Digital Commons @ Uldaho Law

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs, All

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

3-29-2018

State v. Amstad Appellant's Brief Dckt. 45707

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Nature Of The Case

The state appeals from the district court's intermediate appellate decision affirming the magistrate's order dismissing a charge of frequenting a place where drugs were being held for use.

Statement Of The Facts And Course Of The Proceedings

The state charged Daniel C. Amstad under I.C. § 37-2732(d) with frequenting a place where drugs were being held for use. (R., p. 9.) Amstad filed a motion to dismiss, asserting the facts of his case "do not amount to the offense of 'frequenting' as defined in Idaho Code § 37-2732(d)" because he was in a car. (R., pp. 23-25.) The state responded by arguing Amstad was at a "place" where drugs were being used. (R., pp. 59-67.) It argued that the evidence would show that three people, including Amstad, walked from their dorm to a car parked in the dorm parking lot for the specific purpose of smoking marijuana together. (R., p. 62.) The magistrate granted the motion and dismissed. (R., pp. 72, 137-47 (Tr., p. 59-69).) The state filed a timely notice of appeal. (R., pp. 76-77.)

The district court affirmed. (R., pp. 171-78.) The district court reasoned that a "premises" and "place" does not include a parked car, and therefore Amstad could not be guilty of frequenting. (R., pp. 175-78.) The state filed a notice of appeal timely from the district court's intermediate appellate decision. (R., pp. 180-82.)

<u>ISSUE</u>

Did the district court err when it concluded that a person in a car with others for the purpose of smoking marijuana is not within the scope of the frequenting statute?

ARGUMENT

A Person In A Parked Car For The Purpose Of Smoking Marijuana With Others Is Frequenting A Place Where Marijuana Is Being Held For Use

A. Introduction

The district court concluded that Amstad's presence in a car with others for the purpose of smoking marijuana did not fall within the ambit of the frequenting statute. (R., p. 176.) The district court's analysis is faulty, and should be reversed.

B. Standard Of Review

"We exercise free review over statutory interpretation because it is a question of law." State v. Owens, 158 Idaho 1, 3, 343 P.3d 30, 32 (2015). On review of a decision rendered by a district court in its intermediate appellate capacity, the reviewing court "directly review[s] the district court's decision to determine whether it correctly decided the issues presented to it on appeal." Borley v. Smith, 149 Idaho 171, 176, 233 P.3d 102, 107 (2010); see also Losser v. Bradstreet, 145 Idaho 670, 183 P.3d 758 (2008).

C. The District Court Erred By Concluding That Amstad's Presence In A Car Excluded A Finding Of His Being Present At A Place Where Marijuana Was Being Held For Use

"Statutory interpretation begins with the statute's plain language." <u>State v. Taylor</u>, 160 Idaho 381, 385, 373 P.3d 699, 703 (2016). "When the statute's language is unambiguous, the legislature's clearly expressed intent must be given effect, and we do not need to go beyond the statute's plain language to consider other rules of statutory construction." <u>State v. Leary</u>, 160 Idaho 349, 352, 372 P.3d 404, 407 (2016). "Only where the language is ambiguous will this Court look to rules of construction for guidance and

consider the reasonableness of proposed interpretations." <u>In re Adoption of Doe</u>, 156 Idaho 345, 349, 326 P.3d 347, 351 (2014).

Where the words of the statute are ambiguous because subject to more than one meaning, the Court examines "not only the literal words of the statute, but also the reasonableness of proposed constructions, the public policy behind the statute, and its legislative history." Taylor, 160 Idaho at 385, 373 P.3d at 703 (internal quotation omitted). "Where ambiguity exists as to the elements or potential sanctions of a crime, this Court will strictly construe the criminal statute in favor of the defendant." State v. Rhode, 133 Idaho 459, 462, 988 P.2d 685, 688 (1999). However, the ambiguity must be "grievous" and "not resolved by looking at the text, context, history or policy of the statute" before the interpretation benefiting the defendant must be chosen. State v. Bradshaw, 155 Idaho 437, 440, 313 P.3d 765, 768 (Ct. App. 2013) (citing State v. Jones, 151 Idaho 943, 947, 265 P.3d 1155, 1159 (Ct. App. 2011) (rule of lenity "does not require a court to disregard the purpose of a statute when it is clear from the context"). "The rule of lenity applies only if, after seizing everything from which aid can be derived, we can make no more than a guess as to what Congress intended." Muscarello v. United States, 524 U.S. 125, 138 (1998).

The relevant language of the statute is as follows:

It shall be unlawful for any person to be present at or on premises of any place where he knows illegal controlled substances are being manufactured or cultivated, or are being held for distribution, transportation, delivery, administration, use, or to be given away.

I.C. § 37-2732(d). The portion of this language in dispute is "to be present at or on premises of any place where he knows illegal controlled substances are ... being held." (R., pp. 175-78.) This language has two clauses separated by a disjunctive "or." Thus, this statute is violated by anyone "present at ... any place where he knows illegal controlled

substances" are being held **or** "... on premises of any place where he knows illegal controlled substances" are being held. I.C. § 37-2732(d) (emphasis added). The evidence showed Amstad was present at such a place, and therefore the charge should have been decided by a jury.

The district court phrased the issue before it as "whether a person can be 'present at or on the premises of any place' if they [sic] are in a vehicle" and held that a parked car is neither a "place" nor a "premises." (R., pp. 174-76 (brackets original).) As shown above, however, nothing in the plain language of the statute provides that a person **cannot** "be 'present at or on the premises of any place' if they [sic] are in a vehicle." Even accepting the core premise of the district court's reasoning, that a parked car is not itself a "place" or "premises," such simply begs the question of whether *Amstad* was "present at" a place where marijuana was being held for use. For example, a person who goes with friends to smoke marijuana on a sidewalk, at a park, or in a garage would be "present at or on premises of any place where he knows illegal controlled substances are being ... held" for use and thus guilty of frequenting. There is no reading of this statute's plain language or legislative intent indicating that if those same people move to a parked car adjacent to the sidewalk, in the park, or in the garage to continue their drug-related activity the person is

no longer frequenting.¹ The district court's holding that a person cannot "be 'present at or on the premises of any place' if they [sic] are in a vehicle" (R., p. 174; see also R., pp. 174-78) was error under the plain language of the statute.

CONCLUSION

The state respectfully requests this Court to reverse the district court's intermediate appellate decision affirming the magistrate's order granting the motion to dismiss.