Uldaho Law

Digital Commons @ Uldaho Law

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs, All

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

4-27-2018

State v. Amstad Respondent's Brief Dckt. 45707

STATEMENT OF THE CASE
A. Statement of the Facts and Course of the Proceedings
ISSUE
ARGUMENT4
A. Introduction4
B. The District Court Did Not Err by Concluding that Amstad Was Not Present At or On Premises of Any Place When He Was in a Car With a Person Who Possessed Marijuana
C. The Legislature Did Not Intend for a Person in a Motor Vehicle to be Criminally Liable Under Idaho Code § 37-2732(d)
D. Since the Statute is Ambiguous, the Rule of Lenity Applies6
CONCLUSION
CEPTIFICATE OF MAILING

TABLE OF CASES AND AUTHORITIES

Cases

State v. Bradshaw, 155 Idaho 437, 439-440, 313 P.3d 765, 767-68 (Ct. App. 2013)6,
United States v. Brown, 333 U.S. 18, 27 (1948)7
State v. Rhode, 133 Idaho 459, 462, 988 p.2d 685, 688 (1999)7
State v.s Schwartz, 139 Idaho 360, 361-362 (2003)6
Statutes
Idaho Code § 37-2732(d)4, 5, 6
Idaho Code § 37-2737A(2)5
Idaho Code § 37-27326
Other
Black's Law Dictionary, 5th ed. 1979.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. Statement of the Facts and Course of the Proceedings

Respondent disagrees with the Appellant's Statement Of The Facts And Course Of The Proceedings, in that the record did not establish that there was "specific purpose" nor intent on the part of Amstad to smoke marijuana. Respondent otherwise agrees with the Appellant's Statement Of The Facts And Course Of The Proceedings.

ISSUE

Did the District Court err when it concluded that a car is not "place" or a "premises of any place" under Idaho Code § 37-2732(d)?

ARGUMENT

A. Introduction

The District Court correctly concluded that a car is not a "place" or a "premises of any place" under Idaho Code § 37-2732(d), and the decision should be affirmed. (R., p. 176.)

B. The District Court Did Not Err by Concluding that Amstad Was Not Present At Or
On Premises Of Any Place When He Was In a Car With a Person Who Possessed
Marijuana.

Appellant argues that a person in a parked car for the purpose of smoking marijuana with others is frequenting a place where marijuana is being held for use. First of all, there is no indication from the record that Amstad had the intent to smoke the marijuana that was found in CH's lap, and the assertion of the Appellant that Amstad had the intent to use marijuana appears to be an attempt to cloud the issue of whether or not a vehicle can be a place or premises of any place pursuant to Idaho Code § 37-2732(d). The Appellant asserts that the phrase "present at or on the premises of any place" must be read as two clauses separated by a disjunctive "or," and that Amstad violated the statute pursuant to the first clause, by being present at a place where he knew illegal controlled substances were being held. Appellant is not correct in assuming that the "or" must be disjunctive. "Of any place" could also be interpreted as a prepositional phrase modifying "premises," as concluded by the magistrate judge. (Tr. pp. 60-67.) However, even if one agrees that the statute must be read in the disjunctive, Amstad would still not be criminally liable, as it would require the definition of a place to include a motor vehicle, which it does not. "Place" is defined, in part, "In its primary and most general sense means locality, situation, or

site, and is also used to designate an occupied situation or building." PLACE, Black's Law Dictionary (5th ed. 1979).

C. The Legislature Did Not Intend for a Person in a Motor Vehicle to be Criminally Liable Under Idaho Code § 37-2732(d)

If the legislature intended for passengers in motor vehicles to be culpable under this statute, it could have specifically included motor vehicles as a "place" or "premises." The legislature specifically included motor vehicles in the definition of "premises" in a statute under the same title, Idaho Code § 37-2737A(2), Manufacture or Delivery of Controlled Substance While Children are Present. It appears the legislative intent was to broaden the definition of "premises" to increase culpability for a major felony in order to protect children. If the legislature wanted to extend the definition of "premises" to include motor vehicles in order to cite more college kids who are travelling in cars with misdemeanors, it was capable of doing so. This statute has been amended several times, and could have been amended again. Idaho Code § 37-2732.

D. Since the Statute is Ambiguous, the Rule of Lenity Applies

As concluded in the District Court's Memorandum on Appeal, since the statute could reasonably be read two different ways, it is inherently ambiguous, and the rule of lenity applies. Statutory interpretation is a question of law over which this Court exercises free review. *State v.s Schwartz*, 139 Idaho 360, 361-362 (2003). Where the language of the court is clear and unambiguous, the Court need not go beyond the plain meaning of the statute, and there is no reason to resort to legislative history or the rules of statutory interpretation. *State v. Bradshaw*,

155 Idaho 437, 439-440, 313 P.3d 765, 767-68 (Ct. App. 2013). When there is ambiguity in a statue, "this Court will strictly construe the criminal statute in favor of the defendant." *State v. Rhode*, 133 Idaho 459, 462, 988 p.2d 685, 688 (1999), so long as it does not lead to an absurd result. *United States v. Brown*, 333 U.S. 18, 27 (1948). Since there is inherent ambiguity, it would not result in absurdity, and it appears that the legislature did not intend to include motor vehicles in Idaho Code § 37-2732(d), the Court must strictly construe the statute in favor of the defendant.

CONCLUSION

Respondent respectfully requests that this Court AFFIRM the District Court's appellate decision and the Magistrate Court's order granting the motion to suppress.